
ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
RETIREMENT BOARD OF AUTHORITY MEETING 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

PRESENTED TO: 
 
 

 
DATE: 

 
            11/09/2016 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

SUBJECT: 
 
 

 
ITEM #: 

 
2016/2017-001 

Public  Comments  
Enclosure: No 

 Action Item No 

   
 
 

 
 

 
    

 
Prepared by: 

 
Keenan Financial Services 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Requested by: 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The public may address the Retirement Board of Authority on any matter pertaining to the Board 
that is not on the agenda.  

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Chair reserves the right to limit the time of presentations by individual or topic. 

1 of 40



 
ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

RETIREMENT BOARD OF AUTHORITY MEETING 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

PRESENTED TO: 
 
 

 
DATE: 

 
            11/09/2016 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

SUBJECT: 
 
 

 
ITEM #: 

 
2016/2017-002 

Approval of Agenda  
Enclosure: Yes 

 Action Item Yes 

   
 
 

 
 

 
    

 
Prepared by: 

 
Keenan Financial Services 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Requested by: 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Under California Government Code Section §54950 (The Ralph M. Brown Act) the “Legislative 
Body” is required to post an agenda detailing each item of business to be discussed.  The Authority 
posts the agenda in compliance with California Government Code Section §54954.2.  
 
STATUS: 
 
Unless items are added to the agenda according to G.C. §54954.2 (b) (1) (2) (3) the agenda is to be 
approved as posted. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Subject to changes or corrections, the agenda is to be approved. 

2 of 40



Keenan & Associates          Tel: 800-654-8102/Fax: 310-533-1329 
License No. 0451271 
 

AGENDA 
 

ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
RETIREMENT BOARD OF AUTHORITY MEETING 

NOVEMBER 9, 2016 
1:00 PM–3:00 PM 

 

ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, ROOM A140 

3041 WEST AVENUE K 
LANCASTER, CA 93536 
PHONE (661) 722-6300 

 
 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
 

RETIREMENT BOARD OF AUTHORITY (the “Board”) MEMBERS: 
  

      Executive Director Business Services Diana Keelen 
      Vice President Human Resources Mark Bryant 
 R  Board of Trustees Member Michael Adams 

 
PROGRAM COORDINATOR:  
Senior Vice President                   Gail Beal 
Senior Account Manager             Roslyn Washington 
Account Executive, Keenan & Associates          Sharen Stanek-Lowe 
 
CONSULTANTS: 

      Benefit Trust Company (BTC)                                                                                                  Scott Rankin 

      Morgan Stanley Wealth Management (MS) Cary Allison 
      RPM Consultant Group (RPM)                                         Chuck Thompson 

 

OTHERS 
      None  

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

III.      PUBLIC COMMENTS Information 
 2016/2017-001 
The public may address the Retirement Board of Authority on any matter pertaining to the Agency that is 
not on the agenda.  The Chair reserves the right to limit the time of presentations by individual or topic. 
 
 
 
 
 

3 of 40



AGENDA – Antelope Valley Community College District 
Retirement Board of Authority (RBOA) Meeting  
November 9, 2016 
Page 2 of 4 

Keenan & Associates           Tel: 800.654.8102/Fax: 310.533.1329 
License No. 0451271 
 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA Action  
 2016/2017-002  

The Retirement Board of Authority retains the right to change the order in which agenda items are 
discussed.  Subject to review by the Retirement Board of Authority the agenda is to be approved as 
presented.  Items may be deleted or added for discussion only according to G.C. Section 54954.2. 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

             BOARD CONSIDERATION 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES         Action 
 2016/2017-003 
The Retirement Board of Authority will review the Minutes from the previous meeting on May 12, 2016 for 
any adjustments and adoption.  
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
BOARD CONSIDERATION: 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

VI.       INVESTMENTS 
 
PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE REVIEW                  Action      

                                   2016/2017-004 
Morgan Stanley Wealth Management (MS) will review the overall performance of the District’s Public 
Entity Investment Trust portfolio. 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
BOARD CONSIDERATION: 

 
MARKET OVERVIEW            Information 
                       2016/2017-005 
Morgan Stanley Wealth Management (MS) will provide an overview of the actions of the global capital 
markets since the last Retirement Board of Authority meeting. 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

 BOARD CONSIDERATION: 
 

 

INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT REVIEW Action 
 2016/2017-006 
The Retirement Board of Authority shall, with the assistance of Benefit Trust Company (BTC) and Morgan 
Stanley Wealth Management (MS), review the Investment Policy Statement setting forth the investment 
objectives for the Trust.  Key to this process is a review of the Board's time horizon for investment, short-
term liquidity needs, attitudes as well as the capacity to accept investment risk as measured through the 
completion of a Risk Tolerance Questionnaire, the expected rate of return of the Board taking into account 
the discount rate and assumptions contained in the most recent Actuarial Valuation Study, as well as any 
other information the Board Members feel pertinent to the discussion. 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

             BOARD CONSIDERATION: 
 
 
 
 
 

4 of 40



AGENDA – Antelope Valley Community College District 
Retirement Board of Authority (RBOA) Meeting  
November 9, 2016 
Page 3 of 4 

Keenan & Associates           Tel: 800.654.8102/Fax: 310.533.1329 
License No. 0451271 
 

VII.   ADMINISTRATION 
 
ANNUAL REPORTING ON THE STATUS OF THE TRUST                          Action 
                       2016/2016-007 
California Government Code 53216.4 requires an annual reporting of the funds held in the District’s OPEB 
Trust to beneficiaries of the Trust. The Retirement Board of Authority shall acknowledge District 
procedures for Annual Report promulgation to Trust beneficiaries for fiscal year ending June 30, 2016.  
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
BOARD CONSIDERATION: 

 

     DISBURSEMENT REPORT                                                                                                  Action 
 2016/2017-008 
The Retirement Board of Authority members will acknowledge and ratify all reasonable expenses associated 
with the compliance, management and operational duties of the District’s OPEB Investment Trust. 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
BOARD CONSIDERATIONS: 

 
UPDATE OF THE COMPREHENSIVE COMPLIANCE INCLUDING THE “SUBSTANTIVE 
PLAN”               Information 
 2016/2017-009 
The Comprehensive Compliance Plan is a summary of the State of California regulatory mandates and 
GASB requirements applicable to the District’s Public Entity Investment program. As an essential protocol 
of this framework, Keenan Financial Services provides a written summary of the “Substantive Plan” for 
fiscal 2015/2016 which acts as both a road map and a record of the Retirement Board of Authority’s 
compliance with its governance and fiduciary mandates. 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
BOARD CONSIDERATION: 
 

TRANSFER OF ASSETS INTO THE TRUST  Information 
 2016/2017-010 
The District’s asset transfers into the Investment Trust may require a tailored funding procedure.  To meet 
the possible tailored funding procedure, the Retirement Board of Authority (RBOA) will discuss recent 
transfers to the Investment Trust and provide timing and asset transfer schedules related to the District’s 
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) and Pay-As-You-Go funding strategies.  
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
BOARD CONSIDERATION: 

                    

VIII. INFORMATION 
 

RETIREMENT BOARD OF AUTHORITY COMMENTS Information 
 2016/2017-011 
Each member of the Retirement Board of Authority may report about various matters involving the 
Authority.  There will be no Authority discussion except to ask questions, and no action will be taken unless 
listed on a subsequent agenda. 
 
 
 
 

5 of 40



AGENDA – Antelope Valley Community College District 
Retirement Board of Authority (RBOA) Meeting  
November 9, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 

Keenan & Associates           Tel: 800.654.8102/Fax: 310.533.1329 
License No. 0451271 
 

 
PROGRAM COORDINATOR/CONSULTANT COMMENTS Information 
 2016/2017-012 
The Program Coordinator and Consultants will report to the Retirement Board of Authority about various 
matters involving the Authority. There will be no Authority discussion except to ask questions, and no 
action will be taken unless listed on a subsequent agenda. 
 

IX.        DATE, TIME AND AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING  Information 
 2016/2017-013 

Board members and visitors may suggest items for consideration at the next Retirement Board of Authority 
meeting.  
 

X. ADJOURNMENT 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Americans with Disabilities Act: The Antelope Valley Community College District Retirement Board of Authority conforms to the 

protections and prohibitions contained in Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and the federal rules and regulations adopted in 
implementation thereof.  A request for disability-related modifications or accommodation, in order to participate in a public meeting of the Antelope Valley 
Community College District Retirement Board of Authority, shall be made to: Diana Keelen, Executive Director Business Services, Antelope Valley 
Community College District, 3041 West Avenue K, Lancaster, Ca 93536: Phone (661) 722-6300. 
 
 

6 of 40



 
ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

RETIREMENT BOARD OF AUTHORITY MEETING 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

PRESENTED TO: 
 
 

 
DATE: 

 
            11/09/2016 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

SUBJECT: 
 
 

 
ITEM #: 

 
2016/2017-003 

Approval of Minutes  
Enclosure: Yes 

 Action Item Yes 

   
 
 

 
 

 
    

 
Prepared by: 

 
Keenan Financial Services 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Requested by: 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
As a matter of record and in accordance with the Brown Act, minutes of each meeting are kept and 
recorded. 
 
STATUS: 
 
The Board will review the Minutes from the previous Retirement Board of Authority meeting on 
May 12, 2016. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Subject to changes or corrections, the minutes are to be approved. 

7 of 40



MINUTES 
 

ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
 RETIREMENT BOARD OF AUTHORITY MEETING 

May 12, 2016 
1:00 PM–3:00 PM 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

1. Meeting was called to order at 1:00 PM by Diana Keelen, Executive Director 
Business Services. 
 

II. ROLL  CALL 
1. All RBOA members reported their presence at the meeting. 
2. All District Investment Trust Coordinators/Consultants were in attendance, except 

Sharen Stanek Lowe of Keenan & Associates and Chuck Thompson of RPM 
Consultant Group. Cary Allison of Morgan Stanley attended via teleconference. 

 
III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

1. There were no public comments. 
2. This is information only. 

 
IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Michael Adams Motioned to accept the Agenda as presented; Motion was seconded 
by Mark Bryant. The remaining RBOA member voted “Yes” to accept the Agenda 
as presented.  

 
V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Michael Adams Motioned to accept the Minutes from the previous RBOA meeting 
as presented; Motion was seconded by Mark Bryant.  The remaining RBOA member 
voted “Yes” to accept the Agenda as presented.  
 

VI. INVESTMENTS 
1. Portfolio Performance Review 

a. Cary Allison of Morgan Stanley (MS) reviewed the performance of the 
Investment Trust’s portfolio account as of April 30, 2016. 

b. The portfolio value as of April, 30, 2016 was $761,801.57. 
 

Time weighted return net of fees: 
Month to 

Date 
Quarter to 

Date 
Year to 
Date 

Latest 1 
Year 

Annualized 
latest 3 Year 

Annualized 
latest 5 Year 

Annualized 
Inception to 

Date 

0.93 0.93 1.90 - - - -1.93 

 
c. Cary discussed the April Report. April was a good month. 
d. US dollar weakened a bit so the global Bonds increased in the 1st quarter. 
e. Cary pointed out that the Royce Fund was replaced with the Undiscovered 

Managers Funds Behavioral Value Ins. Fund.  
f. Diana Keelen asked Cary to explain the total cost. 

8 of 40



g. Cary said the total cost is equal Deposits, dividends plus capital gains. 
h. The current yield is 2.2. Scott added you get more units when dividends are 

reinvested. 
i. Michael Adams Motioned to accept the Portfolio Performance Review as 

presented; Motion was seconded by Mark Bryant. The remaining RBOA 
member voted “Yes” to accept the Agenda as presented.  

 
2. Market Overview 

a. Cary Allison of Morgan Stanley explained that global risk markets were 
highly volatile in the first quarter of 2016. The worst January in global stock 
market history gave way to a retracement in February and March, leaving US 
stockowners about even, and international positions down about 3% to 5% 
in US dollar terms. Investors grappled with fears of a global recession, 
ineffective central bank policy, a China-driven currency war and declining oil 
prices. For the quarter, gold, emerging market equities and REITs posted the 
strongest returns.  

b. The Department of Commerce estimated that Gross Domestic Product 
increased at an annual rate of 1.4% in the fourth quarter of 2015, in 
comparison to a 2.0% increase in the third quarter of 2015. Morgan Stanley 
& Co. economists forecast U.S. Real GDP will be 1.7% in 2016 and 1.6% in 
2017. 

c. Inflation remained low in the U.S. According to the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics, the seasonally adjusted Consumer Price Index was flat in January 
and decreased 0.2% in February. Morgan Stanley & Co. economists forecast 
a 1.2% inflation rate for 2016 and 1.9% for 2017. Morgan Stanley does not 
feel the country will go into a recession. They just feel as if we are in a slow 
growth economy. 

d. This item is information. 
 

VII. ADMINISTRATION 
1. Disbursement Report 

a. Roslyn Washington of Keenan presented the Disbursement Report schedules 
reflecting expenses for Keenan, BTC & Morgan Stanley for their services 
during the posted period. 

b. Michael Adams Motioned to ratify the Service Entities’ posted period 
expenses; Motion was seconded by Mark Bryant. The remaining RBOA 
member voted “Yes” to ratify the Service Entities’ posted period expenses. 

 
2. Transfer of Assets into the Trust. 

a. The District will fund $387,113.00 into the Trust in July.  
b. This is information only. 

f 
VIII. INFORMATION REPORTS 

1. Retirement Board of Authority Comments 
a. Diana Keelen requested that her name be spelled correctly throughout the 

minutes in the future. 
b. Diana asked about cost containment to assist with reduction of OPEB. 

 

9 of 40



c. Gail Beal said she could send information and also discuss with Chuck 
Thompson of RPM. 

d. This item is information only. 
 

2. Program Coordinator/Consultant Comments 
a. There were no Program Coordinator/Consultant comments. 
b. This item is information only.  

 

IX. DATE, TIME AND AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 
1.  November 9, 2016: 1:00 PM-3:00 PM., then March 16, 2017: 1:00 PM-3:00 PM. 
2. This item is information only.          

 
X. ADJOURNMENT 

 

1.  Meeting was adjourned @ 1:25 PM by Diana Keelen. 

10 of 40



 
ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

RETIREMENT BOARD OF AUTHORITY MEETING 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

PRESENTED TO: 
 
 

 
DATE: 

 
            11/09/2016 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

SUBJECT: 
 
 

 
ITEM #: 

 
2016/2017-004 

Portfolio Performance Review  
Enclosure: Yes 

 Action Item Yes 

   
 
 

 
 

 
    

 
Prepared by: 

 
Morgan Stanley  

Wealth Management (MS) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Requested by: 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
As Board members of the Retirement Board of Authority you have a fiduciary responsibility as 
described in Government Code section 53215, et seq.  As part of fulfilling your fiduciary 
responsibility, it is important to periodically review the District’s Public Entity Investment Trust 
Portfolio.  
 
STATUS: 
 
Morgan Stanley Wealth Management (MS) will provide a review of the District’s Public Entity 
Investment Trust Portfolio Performance Report. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

The Retirement Board of Authority should review and accept the District’s Investment Trust 
Portfolio Performance Report and file as appropriate. 

11 of 40



ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

BENEFIT TRUST COMPANY, TRUSTEE
September 30, 2016

Time Weighted Return - Net of Fees

Annualized Annualized Annualized

Month Quarter Year Latest 1 Latest 3 Latest 5 Inception

To Date To Date To Date Year Year Year To Date

Account 0.42 4.01 6.28 8.61 - - 1.96

S&P 500 TR 0.02 3.86 7.85 15.45 11.17 16.38 4.96

MSCI EAFE 1.23 6.43 1.73 6.52 0.48 7.39 -5.45

MSCI ACWI Ex US Net 1.23 6.91 5.82 9.36 0.21 6.06 -3.16

Barclays Aggregate -0.06 0.46 5.81 5.22 4.03 3.09 4.94

Barclays Global Agg 

Bd Unhedged

0.55 0.81 9.85 8.82 2.13 1.72 8.10

50% MSCI ACWI/ 

50% Barclays Agg

0.27 2.87 6.36 8.80 4.79 7.01 2.95

Time Weighted Return - Gross of Fees

Annualized Annualized Annualized

Month Quarter Year Latest 1 Latest 3 Latest 5 Inception

To Date To Date To Date Year Year Year To Date

Account 0.52 4.32 7.24 9.92 - - 3.15

S&P 500 TR 0.02 3.86 7.85 15.45 11.17 16.38 4.96

MSCI EAFE 1.23 6.43 1.73 6.52 0.48 7.39 -5.45

MSCI ACWI Ex US Net 1.23 6.91 5.82 9.36 0.21 6.06 -3.16

Barclays Aggregate -0.06 0.46 5.81 5.22 4.03 3.09 4.94

Barclays Global Agg Bd 

Unhedged

0.55 0.81 9.85 8.82 2.13 1.72 8.10

50% MSCI ACWI/ 50% 

Barclays Agg

0.27 2.87 6.36 8.80 4.79 7.01 2.95

Asset Allocation

0.0%

37.4%

40.8%

21.8%

PORTFOLIO SUMMARY

September 30, 2016

CASH AND RECEIVABLES -0.12

FIXED INCOME FUNDS 297,180.02

DOMESTIC EQUITY FUNDS 324,183.39

INTERNATIONAL EQUITY FUNDS

173,174.86

Change In Portfolio

Portfolio Value on 12-31-15 747,615.08

Contributions 0.25

Withdrawals -0.15

Change in Market Value 44,641.09

Income Received 9,046.65

Portfolio Fees -6,764.77

Portfolio Value on 09-30-16 794,538.15

794,538.15

12 of 40



PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL 
September 30, 2016

Security Unit Total Market Pct. Cur.

Quantity Security Symbol Cost Cost Price Value Assets Yield

CASH AND RECEIVABLES

NORTHERN INSTL 

FUNDS 

GOVERNMENT 

SELECT

BGSX.X -0.12 -0.12 0.0 0.0

FIXED INC MUTUAL FUNDS

Taxable Funds

1,947.584 BLACKROCK FDS II 

STRATGIC INC K

BSIK.X 9.71 18,912.16 9.81 19,105.80 2.4 2.7

3,795.514 BLACKROCK TOTAL 

RETURN FD BD FD 

BLKRK CL

MPHQ.X 11.94 45,318.86 11.95 45,356.39 5.7 2.8

2,071.244 GUGGENHEIM FDS 

TR INVT GD BD INSTL

GIUS.X 18.28 37,865.34 18.53 38,380.15 4.8 4.0

1,808.607 HARTFORD WORLD 

BOND Y

HWDY.X 10.37 18,755.25 10.40 18,809.51 2.4 0.6

2,008.256 LEGG MASON BW 

ALT

LMAM.X 10.23 20,537.99 9.81 19,700.99 2.5 3.8

2,120.172 LEGG MASON BW 

GLOBAL OPPS BD IS

GOBS.X 10.28 21,786.98 10.94 23,194.68 2.9 0.6

3,097.873 PRUDENTIAL TOTAL 

RETURN BD FD

PTRQ.X 14.28 44,225.85 14.80 45,848.52 5.8 2.8

3,689.285 TEMPLETON 

GLOBAL BOND R6

FBNR.X 11.27 41,578.42 11.11 40,987.96 5.2 3.2

3,829.098 WESTERN ASSET 

FDS INC

WAPS.X 11.85 45,377.77 11.96 45,796.01 5.8 3.3

294,358.63 297,180.02 37.4 2.8

294,358.63 297,180.02 37.4 2.8

DOMESTIC EQUITY FUNDS

Large Cap Funds

2,308.741 ALGER FDS II 

SPECTRA FD Z

ASPZ.X 18.44 42,573.66 17.67 40,795.45 5.1 0.0

1,691.755 COHEN & STEERS 

RLTY INCM NEW 

SHS CL Z

CSZI.X 15.91 26,908.82 15.68 26,526.72 3.3 2.5

1,768.035 COLUMBIA FDS SER 

TR I

COFY.X 22.59 39,939.19 22.81 40,328.88 5.1 2.8

1,221.374 OAKMARK SELECT I OAKL.X 40.23 49,132.42 40.99 50,064.12 6.3 0.3

158,554.10 157,715.17 19.8 1.2

Mid Cap Funds

1,104.158 HARTFORD MIDCAP 

Y

HMDY.X 30.34 33,503.50 29.47 32,539.54 4.1 0.0

1,082.992 PRUDENTIAL 

GLOBAL REAL 

ESTATE

PGRQ.X 24.25 26,262.54 24.92 26,988.16 3.4 2.0

59,766.04 59,527.70 7.5 0.9

Small Cap Funds

2,747.909 ALGER FDS SMALL 

CP FOCUS Z

AGOZ.X 10.93 30,034.65 12.44 34,183.99 4.3 0.0

529.551 UNDISCOVERED 

MANAGERS FDS 

BEHAVR VAL R6

UBVF.X 56.70 30,025.55 61.69 32,668.00 4.1 0.8

60,060.19 66,851.99 8.4 0.4

278,380.33 284,094.86 35.8 1.0

1

13 of 40



PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL 
September 30, 2016

Security Unit Total Market Pct. Cur.

Quantity Security Symbol Cost Cost Price Value Assets Yield

INTERNATIONAL FUNDS

International

656.110 AMERICAN FUNDS 

NEW PERSPECTIVE 

F2

ANWF.X 38.27 25,106.78 37.38 24,525.39 3.1 0.9

1,497.991 BRANDES 

INTERNATIONAL 

SMALL CAP EQUITY I

BISM.X 13.23 19,825.43 13.50 20,222.88 2.5 1.8

2,571.825 BRANDES INVT TR 

INT EQTY FD R6

BIER.X 14.85 38,200.76 15.74 40,480.53 5.1 2.8

2,232.564 HARTFORD 

INTERNATIONAL 

VALUE Y

HILY.X 13.44 30,005.55 15.31 34,180.55 4.3 1.5

1,294.249 LEGG MASON 

PARTNERS EQUITY 

TR CLEARBDG IN IS

CBIS.X 14.50 18,766.59 16.00 20,707.98 2.6 1.3

131,905.10 140,117.33 17.6 1.8

Emerging Markets

301.977 AMERICAN FUNDS 

NEW WORLD F-2

NFFF.X 53.77 16,238.71 54.33 16,406.41 2.1 0.9

2,097.118 BRANDES 

EMERGING 

MARKETS I

BEMI.X 7.17 15,033.39 7.94 16,651.12 2.1 1.3

31,272.10 33,057.53 4.2 1.1

163,177.21 173,174.86 21.8 1.7

BALANCED EQUITY FUNDS

Balanced Funds

2,007.438 THORNBURG 

INVESTMENT 

INCOME BUILDER I

TIBI.X 21.10 42,361.12 19.97 40,088.54 5.0 4.4

42,361.12 40,088.54 5.0 4.4

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 778,277.17 794,538.15 100.0 2.0

2

14 of 40



 
ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

RETIREMENT BOARD OF AUTHORITY MEETING 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

PRESENTED TO: 
 
 

 
DATE: 

 
            11/09/2016 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

SUBJECT: 
 
 

 
ITEM #: 

 
2016/2017-005 

Market Overview  
Enclosure: Yes 

 Action Item No 

   
 
 

 
 

 
    

 
Prepared by: 

 
Morgan Stanley  

Wealth Management (MS) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Requested by: 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
As Members of the Retirement Board of Authority you have a fiduciary responsibility as described 
in Government Code section 53215, et seq.  In fulfilling your fiduciary responsibility, it is important 
to understand the impact of current global capital market conditions on the assets in the trust. 
 
STATUS: 
 
Morgan Stanley Wealth Management (MS) will provide an overview of current global capital market 
conditions. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Retirement Board of Authority shall hear and receive the information provided. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

15 of 40



Portfolio Update – 3rd Quarter 2016

Cary M. Allison, CIMA®

Senior Institutional Consultant
Government Entity Specialist

16 of 40



Fixed Moderate Aggressive

EQUITIES Style Ticker Expenses Income Conservative Moderate Growth Growth Growth

Domestic Equities

Large Cap Domestic Equities

Alger Spectra Large Growth ASPZX 0.89% 0% 1% 3% 5% 5% 7%

Columbia Contrarian Core Large Blend COFYX 0.66% 0% 2% 3% 4% 5% 7%

Oakmark Select Large Value OAKLX 0.95% 0% 2% 4% 4% 6% 7%

0% 5% 10% 13% 16% 21%

Small/Mid Cap Domestic Equities

Hartford Midcap Mid Growth HMDYX 0.76% 0% 0% 1% 2% 4% 6%

Alger Small Cap Focus Small Growth AGOZX 1.01% 0% 1% 2% 3% 4% 5%

Undiscovered Managers Behavioral Value Small Blend UBVFX 0.79% 0% 1% 1% 2% 4% 5%

0% 2% 4% 7% 12% 16%

Real Estate Investment Trusts

Cohen & Steers Real Estate Securities Real Estate CSZIX 0.88% 0% 2% 3% 4% 5.0% 6%

Prudential Global Real Estate Q Real Estate PGRQX 0.80% 0% 1% 2% 3% 4.0% 5%

0% 3% 5% 7% 9% 11%

Total Domestic Equities & REITs 0% 10% 19% 27% 37% 48%

International/Global Equities

Brandes International Small Cap Int'l SMID BISRX 1.00% 0% 1% 1.5% 2% 2.5% 3%

ClearBridge International Small Cap Int'l SMID CBISX 1.06% 0% 0% 1.5% 2% 2.5% 3%

American Funds New Perspectives Fund Global Growth ANWFX 0.55% 0% 1% 2% 2% 3% 4%

American Funds New World Fund Emerging Markets NFFFX 0.76% 0% 1% 1% 1.5% 2.0% 3%

Brandes Emerging Markets Fund Emerging Markets BEMRX 0.97% 0% 0% 1% 1.5% 2.0% 3%

Brandes International Equity Int'l Value BIERX 0.82% 0% 1% 2% 3% 3% 3%

Hartford International Value Int'l Value HILYX 0.90% 0% 1% 2% 3% 4% 4%

Thornburg Investment Income Builder Global Blend TIBIX 0.85% 0% 1% 3% 3% 5% 5%

0% 6% 14% 18% 24% 28%

Total Equities 0% 16% 33% 45% 61% 76%

FIXED INCOME

BlackRock Total Return Domestic Bond MPHQX 0.39% 18.0% 15.0% 12.0% 10.0% 6.0% 4.0%

Guggenheim Investment Grade Bond Domestic Bond GIUSX 0.75% 18.0% 15.0% 12.0% 10.0% 7.0% 4.0%

Prudential Total Return Bond Domestic Bond PTRQX 0.46% 18.0% 15.0% 12.0% 10.0% 7.0% 4.0%

Western Asset Core Plus Bond Domestic Bond WAPSX 0.42% 18.0% 15.0% 12.0% 10.0% 7.0% 4.0%

Guggenheim Macro Opportunities Domestic Bond GIOIX 0.97% 9.0% 8.0% 6.0% 5.0% 4.0% 3.0%

Hartford World Bond Global Bond HWDYX 0.67% 8.0% 7.0% 5.0% 4.0% 3.0% 2.0%

Legg Mason Brandywine Global Opportunities Bond Global Bond GOBSX 0.56% 6.0% 5.0% 5.0% 3.0% 3.0% 1.5%

Legg Mason Brandywine Alternative Credit Global Bond LMAMX 1.25% 5.0% 4.0% 3.0% 3.0% 2.0% 1.5%

Total Bonds Subtotals 100.0% 84.0% 67.0% 55.0% 39.0% 24.0%

SUMMARY

Total Equities 0.0% 16.0% 33.0% 45.0% 61.0% 76.0%

Total Fixed Income 100.0% 84.0% 67.0% 55.0% 39.0% 24.0%

Grand Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Expense Ratio 0.60% 0.63% 0.67% 0.70% 0.73% 0.76%

NOMINAL BENCHMARKS

MSCI ACWI (All County World Index) 0% 15% 30% 45% 60% 75%

Barclay's Aggregate Bond 100% 85% 70% 55% 40% 25%

STATISTICS

Avg Annual Return 4.50% 5.00% 6.00% 6.99% 7.69% 8.46%

Standard Deviation (Risk) 3.94% 4.26% 6.09% 7.41% 9.48% 11.89%

NOTE: The Futuris portfolios listed above are sample representations only and may be altered from time to time at the discretion of the Trustee.

MODEL PORTFOLIOS

Cary M. Allison, CIMA
Senior Institutional Consultant

17 of 40



Quarter Fixed Income Conservative Moderate

Moderate 

Growth Growth

Aggressive 

Growth

Quarterly Returns

3/31/2008 0.72% ‐0.37% ‐1.49% ‐3.40% ‐5.13% ‐6.50%

6/30/2008 ‐1.51% ‐1.76% ‐1.75% ‐1.47% ‐1.25% ‐0.97%

9/30/2008 ‐3.19% ‐4.12% ‐5.53% ‐7.08% ‐8.88% ‐11.99%

12/31/2008 0.28% ‐2.90% ‐6.76% ‐9.65% ‐13.11% ‐17.53%

3/31/2009 ‐0.34% ‐2.21% ‐4.38% ‐5.50% ‐7.11% ‐9.17%

6/30/2009 7.63% 9.64% 12.08% 13.79% 15.91% 19.16%

9/30/2009 8.04% 9.48% 11.18% 12.23% 13.84% 15.75%

12/31/2009 2.06% 2.26% 2.60% 2.90% 3.18% 3.67%

3/31/2010 3.31% 3.59% 3.83% 3.97% 4.23% 4.46%

6/30/2010 1.74% ‐0.35% ‐2.38% ‐3.89% ‐5.73% ‐7.85%

9/30/2010 4.69% 6.20% 7.61% 8.68% 9.87% 11.45%

12/31/2010 ‐0.30% 0.98% 2.45% 3.57% 5.03% 6.92%

3/31/2011 1.50% 1.88% 2.26% 2.58% 3.09% 3.58%

6/30/2011 2.15% 1.93% 1.61% 1.28% 0.91% 0.49%

9/30/2011 0.17% ‐2.89% ‐5.81% ‐7.78% ‐10.68% ‐13.70%

12/31/2011 1.52% 2.35% 3.30% 3.98% 4.96% 6.08%

3/31/2012 2.75% 4.06% 5.37% 6.27% 7.62% 9.09%

6/30/2012 1.89% 0.57% ‐0.66% ‐1.62% ‐2.93% ‐4.29%

9/30/2012 3.75% 4.14% 4.37% 4.57% 4.92% 5.18%

12/31/2012 1.52% 1.89% 2.22% 2.39% 2.63% 2.83%

3/31/2013 0.60% 1.47% 2.55% 3.32% 4.37% 5.57%

6/30/2013 ‐2.99% ‐2.48% ‐1.80% ‐1.36% ‐0.74% ‐0.09%

9/30/2013 0.94% 1.64% 2.58% 3.30% 4.29% 5.24%

12/31/2013 0.94% 1.90% 2.85% 3.43% 4.36% 5.33%

3/31/2014 2.14% 2.04% 1.97% 2.05% 1.89% 1.85%

6/30/2014 2.52% 2.87% 3.30% 3.65% 4.02% 4.37%

9/30/2014 ‐0.04% ‐0.60% ‐1.11% ‐1.56% ‐2.17% ‐2.61%

12/31/2014 0.83% 0.59% 0.91% 1.18% 1.50% 1.61%

3/31/2015 1.54% 1.63% 1.89% 2.15% 2.37% 2.48%

6/30/2015 ‐1.70% ‐1.40% ‐1.03% ‐0.87% ‐0.60% ‐0.30%

9/30/2015 ‐0.38% ‐1.97% ‐3.16% ‐3.99% ‐5.19% ‐6.33%

12/31/2015 ‐0.42% 0.57% 1.53% 2.06% 2.89% 3.74%

3/31/2016 2.62% 2.10% 1.76% 1.64% 1.36% 1.05%

6/30/2016 2.26% 1.92% 1.75% 1.68% 1.54% 1.42%

9/30/2016 1.27% 2.05% 2.89% 3.48% 4.27% 5.05%

Annualized Returns

1 Year 5.83% 6.80% 8.16% 9.15% 10.42% 11.69%

2 Years 3.01% 2.73% 3.24% 3.62% 3.98% 4.22%

3 Years 3.88% 3.91% 4.52% 4.96% 5.37% 5.80%

4 Years 2.90% 3.55% 4.79% 5.66% 6.72% 7.83%

5 Years 4.33% 5.10% 6.36% 7.22% 8.34% 9.51%

6 Years 4.20% 4.55% 5.32% 5.84% 6.47% 7.14%

7 Years 5.32% 5.60% 6.23% 6.67% 7.16% 7.71%

8 Years 7.61% 7.59% 7.84% 7.99% 8.13% 8.22%

Annual Returns

2008 ‐3.70% ‐8.88% ‐14.75% ‐20.09% ‐25.83% ‐32.79%

2009 18.28% 20.03% 22.25% 24.18% 26.47% 29.88%

2010 9.71% 10.70% 11.74% 12.48% 13.39% 14.71%

2011 5.44% 3.21% 1.10% ‐0.38% ‐2.47% ‐4.71%

2012 10.27% 11.05% 11.67% 11.94% 12.49% 12.93%

2013 ‐0.56% 2.49% 6.25% 8.89% 12.75% 16.92%

2014 5.54% 4.95% 5.11% 5.35% 5.24% 5.19%

2015 ‐0.98% ‐1.21% ‐0.85% ‐0.78% ‐0.74% ‐0.72%

2016 YTD 6.27% 6.19% 6.53% 6.94% 7.32% 7.66%

Cary M. Allison, CIMA
Senior Institutional Consultant

18 of 40



Portfolio Returns 

As of September 30th, 2016 

 

Portfolio        3 Mo    1‐Yr    3‐Yr    5‐Yr 

Fixed Income      1.27%   5.83%   3.88%   4.33% 
Benchmark (Barclay’s Aggregate)    0.46%    5.19%    4.03%    3.08% 

 

Conservative      2.05%   6.80%   3.91%   5.10% 
Benchmark (85% BC Ag / 15% ACWI  1.23%    6.35%    4.30%    4.32% 

         

Moderate        2.89%   8.16%   4.52%   6.36% 
Benchmark (70% BC Ag /30% ACWI)  2.00%    7.48%    4.53%    5.54%   

 

Moderate Growth      3.48%   9.15%   4.96%   7.22% 
Benchmark (55% BC Ag /45% ACWI)  2.77%    8.58%    4.74%    6.73% 

 

Growth        4.27%   10.42%  5.37%   8.34% 
Benchmark (40% BC Ag / 60% ACWI)  3.54%    9.64%    4.92%    7.89% 

 

Aggressive Growth     5.05%   11.69%  5.80%   9.51% 
Benchmark (25% BC Ag / 75% ACWI)  4.32%    10.67%    5.07%    9.03% 

 

 

 

NOTE: The Futuris portfolios listed above are sample representations only and may be altered from time to time at 

the discretion of the trustee. 

 

   

19 of 40



 
  ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

RETIREMENT BOARD OF AUTHORITY MEETING 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

PRESENTED TO: 
 
 

 
DATE: 

 
            11/09/2016 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

SUBJECT: 
 
 

 
ITEM #: 

 
2016/2017-006 

Investment Policy Statement (IPS) Review Enclosure: Yes 

 Action Item Yes 

   
 
 

 
 

 
    

 
Prepared by: 

 
Benefit Trust Company 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Requested by: 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Investment Policy Statement for the Trust must be reviewed periodically to ensure that it 
reflects the current investment objectives of the Retirement Board of Authority.  The Investment 
Policy Statement governs the actions of the Discretionary Trustee and its Advisor in the selection 
and monitoring of investments for the trust.   
  

STATUS: 
 
The members of the Retirement Board of Authority, with the assistance of Benefit Trust 
Company (BTC) and Morgan Stanley Wealth Management (MS) will review the provisions of the 
Investment Policy Statement. A key to this process may be a review of the Board’s risk attitude as 
well as the capacity to accept investment risk as measured through the completion of a Risk 

Tolerance Questionnaire. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Discuss the information received and modify the Investment Policy Statement for the investment 
of Trust assets if needed, or otherwise affirm it in its present form. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

20 of 40



21 of 40



22 of 40



23 of 40



24 of 40



25 of 40



26 of 40



27 of 40



28 of 40



 
ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

RETIREMENT BOARD OF AUTHORITY MEETING 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

PRESENTED TO: 
 
 

 
DATE: 

 
               11/09/2016 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

SUBJECT: 
 
 

 
ITEM #: 

 
2016/2017-007 

Annual Reporting on the Status of the Trust  
Enclosure: Yes 

 Action Item Yes 

   
 
 

 
 

 
    

 
Prepared by: 

 
Keenan Financial Services 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Requested by: 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
California Government Code 53216.4 requires an annual reporting of the funds held in the 
Investment Trust to participants and their beneficiaries.  
 
STATUS: 
 
The Retirement Board of Authority approved the method of how the promulgation of Annual 
Reports on the status of funds held in trust will be made in compliance with California 
Government Code 53216.4. The Retirement Board of Authority should ratify promulgation of the 
Annual Report to Trust beneficiaries for fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Retirement Board of Authority will make decisions and take appropriate action as deemed 
necessary. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

29 of 40



 

 

 
 

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE 
ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

FUTURIS TRUST 
AUGUST 2016 

 
 
The Antelope Valley Community College District has established the Futuris Public Entity 
Investment Trust. This Trust is an IRS Section 115 Trust that is used for the purposes of 
investment and disbursement of funds irrevocably designated by the District for the 
payment of its obligations to eligible employees (and former employees) of the District and 
their eligible dependents and beneficiaries for life, sick, hospitalization, major medical, 
accident, disability, dental and other similar benefits (sometimes referred to as “other post-
employment benefits,” or “OPEB”), in compliance with Governmental Accounting 
Statement Nos. 43/74 and 45/751.   
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) adopted Statements 43/74 and 
45/75 for public sector employers to identify and report their Other Post-Employment 
Benefits (OPEB) liabilities.  GASB Statements 43 and 45 establish uniform financial 
reporting standards for OPEB and improve relevance and usefulness of the reporting.  Both 
of these standards provide instructions for calculating expenses and liabilities as well as 
requiring supplementary information schedules to be added to the year–end financial 
reports. GASB 74 and 75 build on the prior standards, requiring more disclosure, as well as 
more uniformity in calculating an agency’s OPEB liability.  
 
 
The District has created a Retirement Board of Authority consisting of District personnel to 
oversee and run the Futuris Trust.  Benefit Trust Company is the qualified Discretionary 
Trustee for asset and fiduciary management and investment policy development.  Keenan & 
Associates is the Program Coordinator for the Futuris Trust providing oversight of the 
Futuris program and guidance to the District. 
 
Attached to this notice is the most recent annual statement for the Trust.  This statement 
shows (as of the date of the statement); the total assets in the Trust, the market value, the 
book value, all contribution and distribution activity (including all fees and expenses 
associated with the Trust), income activity,  purchase activity, sale activity, and realized gains 
and losses.  Please note that the Trust is not itself an employee benefit plan.  Rather, the 
assets in the Trust are irrevocably designated for the funding of employee benefit plans.  
You are being provided this information pursuant to California Government Code Section 
53216.4. 
 
For more information regarding the Futuris Public Entity Investment Trust, please contact 
Diana Keelen, Executive Director Business Services at (661)722-6319 with the Antelope 
Valley Community College District.  

                                                 
1  GASB Standard No. 43 was superseded by Statement No. 74 for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016. 
GASB Standard No. 45 will be superseded by Statement No. 75 as of fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017.  

30 of 40



ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
RETIREMENT BOARD OF AUTHORITY MEETING 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

PRESENTED TO: 
 
 

 
DATE: 

 
            11/09/2016 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

SUBJECT: 
 
 

 
ITEM #: 

 
2016/2017-008 

 
Disbursement Report 

 
Enclosure: 

 
Yes 

 Action Item Yes 

   
 
 

 
 

 
    

 
Prepared by: 

 
Keenan Financial Services 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Requested by: 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The District’s OPEB Investment Trust is able to pay for all expenses relating to the reimbursement 
of Retiree Benefits for eligible participants and the reasonable fees associated with the compliance, 
management and operational duties of the Trust.  

 
STATUS:  
The Retirement Board of Authority (RBOA) members shall ratify all reasonable expenses 
associated with compliance, management and operational duties of the District’s OPEB Trust since 
the last RBOA meeting. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Retirement Board of Authority should ratify the payment of reasonable fees expenses as profiled. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

31 of 40



ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT OPEB TRUST FEE DISBURSEMENT 

 

 

32 of 40



ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISRICT 
RETIREMENT BOARD OF AUTHORITY MEETING 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

PRESENTED TO: 
 
 

 
DATE: 

 
            11/09/2016 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

SUBJECT: 
 
 

 
ITEM #: 

 
2016/2017-009 

Update of the Comprehensive Compliance Plan including 
the Substantive Plan. Enclosure: Yes 

 Action Item No 

   
 
 

 
 

 
    

 
Prepared by: 

 
Keenan Financial Services 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Requested by: 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Under the Antelope Valley Community College District Public Entity Investment Trust program, 
Keenan Financial Services prepares a written summary of the “Substantive Plan”, as part of an 
overall Comprehensive Compliance Plan, which acts as both a road map and a record of the 
Retirement Board of Authority’s compliance with its governance and fiduciary mandates. 
 
STATUS: 
 
The Retirement Board of Authority will discuss the processes of completing the Antelope Valley 
Community College District “Substantive Plan” as an essential component of the Comprehensive 
Compliance Plan for Plan Year ending June 30, 2016. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Retirement Board of Authority will review the information presented and file accordingly.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

33 of 40



34 of 40



35 of 40



36 of 40



ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
RETIREMENT BOARD OF AUTHORITY MEETING 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

PRESENTED TO: 
 
 

 
DATE: 

 
            11/09/2016 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

SUBJECT: 
 
 

 
ITEM #: 

 
2016/2017-010 

Transfer of Assets into the Trust  
Enclosure: No 

 Action Item No 

   
 
 

 
 

 
    

 
Prepared by: 

 
Keenan Financial Services 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Requested by: 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The District’s Investment Trust was created for the exclusive purpose of prefunding unfunded 
retiree OPEB liabilities. 
 
STATUS: 
 
The Retirement Board of Authority will acknowledge previous District transfers to the Trust and 
provide updates for anticipated prefunding transfers for the current fiscal year. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Retirement Board of Authority shall hear the discussion and file the information accordingly.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37 of 40



 
ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

RETIREMENT BOARD OF AUTHORITY MEETING 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

PRESENTED TO: 
 
 

 
DATE: 

 
            11/09/2016 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

SUBJECT: 
 
 

 
ITEM #: 

 
2016/2017-011 

Retirement Board of Authority Comments  
Enclosure: No 

 Action Item No 

   
 
 

 
 

 
    

 
Prepared by: 

 
Keenan Financial Services 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Requested by: 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Each member may report about various matters involving the Retirement Board of Authority. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
There will be no Retirement Board of Authority discussion except to ask questions or refer matters 
to staff, and no action will be taken unless listed on a subsequent agenda. 

38 of 40



 
ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

RETIREMENT BOARD OF AUTHORITY MEETING 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

PRESENTED TO: 
 
 

 
DATE: 

 
            11/09/2016 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

SUBJECT: 
 
 

 
ITEM #: 

 
2016/2017-012 

Program Coordinator/Consultant Comments  
Enclosure: No 

 Action Item No 

   
 
 

 
 

 
    

 
Prepared by: 

 
Keenan Financial Services 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Requested by: 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Program Coordinator may address the Board of Authority on any matter pertaining to the 
Retirement Board of Authority that is not on the agenda. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
There will be no Retirement Board of Authority discussion except to ask questions or refer matters 
to staff, and no action will be taken unless listed on a subsequent agenda. 

39 of 40



 
ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

RETIREMENT BOARD OF AUTHORITY MEETING 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

PRESENTED TO: 
 
 

 
DATE: 

 
            11/09/2016 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

SUBJECT: 
 
 

 
ITEM #: 

 
2016/2017-013 

Date, Time and Agenda Items for Next Meeting  
Enclosure: No 

 Action Item No 

   
 
 

 
 

 
    

 
Prepared by: 

 
Keenan Financial Services 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Requested by: 

 
Retirement Board of Authority 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Board members and visitors may suggest items for consideration at the next Retirement Board of 
Authority meeting. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Board will determine Agenda Items for the next meeting. 

 

40 of 40




